From: Theresa Nangle Obermeyer, Ph.D.

To: Senate State Affairs

Subject: HB121

Date: Wednesday, April 23, 2025 8:09:49 AM

Attachments: WA & OR No Longer Require Bar Exam Spokesman 3-24-24.pdf

34th AK Legislature 1st Session DRAFT Bill Reciprocity & Precedent.pdf
SIJR 21 ... OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL SENATOR ELVI GRAY-JACKSON 2-24-20.pdf

Dear Senate State Affairs:

Please review our Facebook Group:’Elect Alaska Attorney General 2026”
https://www.facebook.com/groups/697790762401945

Thank you for letting me address you during "Public Comment" at your meeting yesterday. 1

pointed out how easily you are allowing C.P.A.s to practice in Alaska under ""Account
Practice Privilege'" when you do NOT address licensure and practice of lawyers.

I brought up as below two major issues:

1.) Wisconsin "Diploma Privilege' which is the same terminology as HB121 "Accounting
Practice Privilege" https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Diploma privilege;

2.) As per the article below #1, Washington Supreme Court and Oregon Supreme Court, our
two neighboring states, have ruled that their instate American Bar Assn. law school graduates
do NOT have to take a Bar Examination to be licensed to practice law in those states.

Please review also below:
3.) DRAFT BILL "Authorizing the admission of reciprocal applicants to Alaska Bar Assn.
who have passed a written bar exam in a reciprocal state . . ." and precedent "Laws of Alaska

1966" HB520;

4.) PLEASE INTRODUCE SJR21 "Proposing amendment to the Constitution of the State of
Alaska relative to the office of Attorney General" by Senator Elvi Gray-Jackson 2-24-20.

I ask that you review how unfair and unAmerican Alaska Bench and Bar are as you allow
C.P.A.s to practice in Alaska. Why haven't you addressed Alaska Bar Assn. that continues to
hold a very unfair Alaska Bar Exam? It is time to research what a monopoly Alaska Bar Assn.
really is.

Please contact me if I can explain for fully.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

Theresa Nangle Obermeyer
(816)853-5950 Cell
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The Spokesman-Review, Spokane, WA

“Supreme Court: Bar exam will no longer be required
to become attorney in Washington State”

March 15, 2024

By Emma Epperly emmae@spokesman.com(509) 459-5122

The bar exam will no longer be required to become a lawyer in Washington, the State
Supreme Court ruled in a pair of orders Friday.

The court approved alternative ways to show competency and earn a law license after
appointing a task force to examine the issue in 2020.

The Bar Licensure Task Force found that the traditional exam “disproportionally and
unnecessarily blocks” marginalized groups from becoming practicing attorneys and is “at
best minimally effective” for ensuring competency, according to a news release from the
Washington Administrative Office of the Courts.

Washington is the second state to not require the bar exam, following
Oregon, which implemented the change at the start of this year. Other states,
including Minnesota, Nevada, South Dakota and Utah, are examining alternative
pathways to licensure.

“These recommendations come from a diverse body of lawyers in private and public
practice, academics, and researchers who contributed immense insight, counterpoints
and research to get us where we are today,” Washington Supreme Court Justice Raquel
Montoya-Lewis, who chaired the task force, said in a statement. “With these alternative
pathways, we recognize that there are multiple ways to ensure a competent, licensed body
of new attorneys who are so desperately needed around the state.”

There will be three experiential-learning alternatives to the bar exam, each for people
following a different path of legal study. The specifics, scale and implementation plan for
the pathways have yet to be developed.

Law school graduates can complete a six-month apprenticeship while being supervised
and guided by a qualified attorney, along with finishing three courses.

Law students can become practice-ready by completing 12 qualifying skills credits and
500 hours of work as a licensed legal intern. Upon completion of those requirements, they
would submit a portfolio of that work to waive the bar exam.





Typically, students will complete an internship between their second and third years of
law school, gaining about 400 hours of experience, according to the task force’s report.
Then, if they do about three hours a week of legal work through their final year of law
school, students could have 500 hours of experience upon graduation, leaving the
portfolio to complete before licensure.

Lastly, law clerks can become lawyers without enrolling in law school by completing
standardized educational materials and benchmarks under the guidance of a mentoring
attorney, along with the 500 hours of work as a licensed legal intern.

While people always have been able to study law under another attorney, then become
licensed themselves by taking the bar exam, this new pathway creates standardized
education materials and removes the examination requirement.

Gonzaga School of Law Dean Jacob Rooksby said he is supportive of alternative pathways
but hopes they will be implemented at a smaller scale first.

“I'm on board with it in concept,” Rooksby said. “The devil is in the details.”

The pathway for law students supposes that law schools will be involved in some level,
Rooksby said. It’s unclear how that will impact Gonzaga at this point, he said.

“I urged that we move in this direction cautiously and viewing it almost as a case study or
a trial to see: How could the different schools implement it but in a small scale?” he said.

He proposed allowing no more than 5% of an incoming class to pursue the experiential
pathway at first until the profession can gauge interest from students and employers.
Rooksby also has some concerns that this pathway would be of particular interest to
people with family connections in the legal field, which likely wouldn’t be contributing to
the goal of diversifying the profession.

He hopes for “guardrails” so that the goal of increasing diversity and meeting legal needs
in marginalized communities is met.

Rooksby expects the earliest an alternative pathway process could be implemented at
Gonzaga would be in 2025.

The Supreme Court called for the investigation and adoption of assessments and
programs to help ensure lawyers remain competent throughout their careers, not just at
initial licensure.

These changes are in addition to Washington adopting the new National Conference of
Bar Examiners’ NextGen bar exam, which focuses more on practice and real-world skills.
That exam will be implemented in summer 2026.

The court also lowered the bar exam minimum passing score from 270 to 266, a reduction
previously made during the COVID-19 pandemic.





Rooskby said first-year students at Gonzaga would be taking the new exam, and the school
has begun working on an adjusted curriculum. He’s happy the exam focuses more on
practical skills than the traditional standardized test memorization.

“The combination of adopting the NextGen bar exam and lowering the score are positive
steps to close the access to justice rate that we have in Washington state and other states
have as well,” he said.

The Washington State Bar Association will implement the changes. A timeline has yet to
be set. The bar association did not immediately respond to a request for comment.

The task force, made up of representatives from more than 30 groups and areas of
practice, also examined the character and fitness process for lawyer licensure. The state
Supreme Court plans to discuss and potentially make decisions on the task force’s
recommendations in that arena next month.






34™ Alaska Legislature 1% Session

LAWS OF ALASKA
2025
Source: Chapter No:
H/SB
AN ACT

Authorizing the admission of reciprocal applicants to the Alaska Bar Association who have
passed a written bar exam in a reciprocal state to the active practice of law; and providing for an
effective date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA:

Section 1. A.S. Sec. 08.08 is amended by adding (underlined) new sections and eliminating (by
brackets [ ] in italics and bold) sections to read:

Article 4. Unlawful Acts

Sec. 08.08.210 Who may practice law.

(b) The practice of law shall be defined in the Alaska Bar Rules with the elimination of Alaska
Bar Rules 2.2(b)(3) and 43.1.1(c) which exclude applicants who have failed an Alaska Bar Exam
and to amend 2.2(c) eliminating “750 hours per year” in “active practice of law.”

Alaska Bar Rule 2.2(b)(3) reads:

[An applicant is not eligible for admission of under this section if the applicant has taken and
Jailed to pass an Alaska Bar examination, unless this occurred before the applicant engaged in
the five years of practice required by (a)(2) of this section)

Alaska Bar Rule 43.1.1(c¢) reads:

[The person has not failed the bar exam of this state]

Alaska Bar Rule 2.2(c) reads:

For purposes of this section, the “active practice of law” shall mean [at least 750 hours per
year]

Section 2. This Act takes effect on the day after its passage and approval or on the day it
becomes law without such approval.

Approved by Governor:

Effective Date:






LAWS OF ALASKA

1966

Source: Chapter No.

HB 520 144

ANACT

Authorizing the Department of Labor to enter into reciprocal agreements with other states
regarding wage claims; and providing for an effective date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA:
* Section 1. AS 23.05 is amended by adding new sections to read:

ARTICLE 4. RECIPROCAL AGREEMENTS.

Sec. 23.05.320. RECIPROCAL AGREEMENTS WITH OTHER
STATES. The commissioner of labor may enter into reciprocal agreements with
the labor department or corresponding agency of another state, or with the per-
son, board, officer, or commission authorized to act on behalf of that department
or agency for the collection in the other state of claims or judgments for wages

based upon claims previously assigned to the commissioner of labor.

Sec. 23.05.330. ACTIONS IN COURTS OF OTHER STATES.
The commissioner of labor may, to the extent permitted by a reciprocal agree-
ment with an agency of another state, maintain actions in the courts of that state

for the collection of claims or judgments for wages, and may assign claims or





judgments to the labor department or agency of that state for collection.

Sec. 23.05.340. ACTIONS IN THIS STATE FOR DEMANDS ARISING IN
OTHER STATES.  The commissioner of labor may, upon the written request of the labor de-
partment or corresponding agency of another state or of a person, board, officer, or commission
authorized to act on behalf of that department or agency, maintain actions in the courts of this
state upon assigned claims or judgments for wages arising in another state in the sane manner
and to the same extent that such actions by the commissioner of labor are authorized for claims
arising in this state; provided that these actions may be maintained only in the event that the
department or agency in the other state provides, by agreement, reciprocal services to the com-

misioner of labor.

* Sec. 2. This Act takes effect on the day after its passage and approval or on the day it be-

comes law without such approval.

Approved by Governor April 16, 1966
Actual effective date:  April 17, 1966
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SENATE JOINT RESOLUTION NO. 21
IN THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA

THIRTY-FIRST LEGISLATURE - SECOND SESSION

BY SENATOR GRAY-JACKSON
\

Introduced: 2/24/20
Referred: State Affairs, Judiciary, Finance

: A RESOLUTION
|

Proposing amendments to the Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to the office of

attorney general.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA:

* Section 1. Article I1I, sec. 25, Constitution of the State of Alaska, is amended to read:
Section 25, Department Heads. The head of each principal department shall

be a single executive unless otherwise provided by law. The head of a principal

department [HE] shall be appointed by the governor, subject to confirmation by a
|

majority of the members of the legislature in joint session, and shall serve at the

pleasure of the goVernor, except as otherwise provided in this article with respect to

the lieutenant governor and the attorney general [SECRETARY OF STATE]. The

heads of all principjal departments shall be citizens of the United States.
* Sec. 2. Article 111, Constitution of the State of Alaska, is amended by adding a new section
to read:
Section 28.; Attorney General. (a) The attorney general shall be elected in the
manner provided by law by the qualified voters of the State at the same time and for

the same term as the governor. The attorney general shall be a citizen of the United

SJR021A ‘ -1- SJR 21
New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]
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States, a qualified voter of the State, and a resident of Alaska. A person is not eligible
to serve as attorney general unless the person is an active member of the organized
state bar. The attorney general shall perform the duties and receive the compensation
prescribed by law; which compensation may not be diminished during the term of
office for which the attorney general is elected unless by general law applying to all
salaried officers of the state.

(b) No person who has been elected attorney general for two full successive
terms shall be agaih eligible to hold that office until one full term has intervened.

(¢) In case of a vacancy in the office of attorney general for any reason, the
governor shall, by‘ proclamation, call a special election to be held on a date not less
than sixty nor morje than ninety days after the date the vacancy occurs. However, if the
vacancy occurs oni a date that is less than sixty days before or is on or after the date of
the primary election of a year in which an attorney general is regularly elected, the
governor may not call a special election. The governor may, at least five days after a
vacancy occurs bu{ within thirty days after the date of the vacancy, appoint a qualified
person to fill the ivacancy until the results of the special election called to fill the
vacancy are certified. If the special election is not called for the reasons provided in
this subsection, the person shall fill the vacancy until the results of the next general

election are certified.

* Sec. 3. Article XV, Constitution of the State of Alaska, is amended by adding a new

section to read: |

Section 30, Initial Election of Attorney General. The first election for an
attorney general rLaquired by the constitution to be elected shall occur at the first
general election at ;Which a governor is to be elected occurring after the requirement of
an elected attorney general is established under the constitution. A vacancy that occurs
in the office of attPrney general before the first general election at which an attorney
general is elected Fhall be filled under the law as it existed before the elected office

was established unﬂer the constitution.

* Sec. 4. The amendmepts proposed by this resolution shall be placed before the voters of
the state at the next geneﬁal election in conformity with art. XIII, sec. 1, Constitution of the

State of Alaska, and the election laws of the state.
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